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Electric Vehicle DC Fast Charging Stations – Phase 4 

Questions Received as of November 22, 2022 

Question Efficiency Maine Response 
1. Champlain Energy Systems: Does the Recipient of 

the grant own the charging equipment from the 
offset (sic) or at the end of the 10-year contract? 

Efficiency Maine anticipates that the Recipient will own the 
equipment from the time the equipment is commissioned 
through the duration of the contract term. Neither Efficiency 
Maine nor the State of Maine will own the charging equipment, 
except in certain circumstances where the chargers have ceased 
to provide services during the term of the contract, or uncured 
breach of the contract, in which case Efficiency Maine may 
exercise certain rights under the Riders of the to assume 
ownership of the EV chargers and related equipment. 

2. Champlain Energy Systems: In the event that a 
project has a larger upfront capital cost but does not 
require Efficiency Maine to pay for demand charges, 
can Efficiency Maine take funds out of the New 
England Clean Energy Connect (NECEC) and put 
them towards the capital cost? 

The budgets listed in Section 1.6 are estimates, and Efficiency 
Maine will determine which funding source to use for each part 
of the incentive at its discretion.  

3. Champlain Energy Systems: What are the milestones 
for the reimbursement of the Recipient? 

This is a reimbursement grant and incentive payments will be 
distributed upon successful completion of certain project 
milestones. See Attachment B, Rider B, page 16 of the Standard 
Agreement for the payment schedule and project milestones.  

4. Champlain Energy Systems: Because the project 
works on a reimbursement basis, is Efficiency Maine 
willing to deal directly with the equipment suppliers 
and pay them directly rather than going through the 
Recipient? If this is not possible, then the Recipient 
will have to find a lending institution to bridge 
finance the costs of the project until the 
reimbursement; is Efficiency Maine willing to 
provide the documents needed by the financial 
institution accepting to waive the Recipient’s rights 
in reimbursement to be in the financial institution’s 
name directly from Efficiency Maine on account of 
the Recipient? 

Efficiency Maine will only reimburse the party that is identified as 
the lead party on a bid team and that is named in the contract 
that results with a winning bidder. To address the concern that 
has been raised here, Efficiency Maine will consider adding at 
least one interim Milestone payment. 
 
Efficiency Maine will not take a security interest in any 
equipment, fixtures or materials that are subject to the incentives 
until it makes a Milestone payment for the costs specific to such 
equipment, fixtures, or materials. 

5. Champlain Energy Systems: What is the range of 
temperature that is required for the EVSE to 
withstand? 

The RFP does not specify a range of temperatures for the EV 
charging equipment to withstand. Equipment should be rated 
appropriately for the local climate where it will be installed. 
Bidders can find data on average, maximum, and minimum 
temperatures for each town on the National Oceanic and 
Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) website: 
https://www.ncei.noaa.gov/access/us-climate-
normals/#dataset=normals-
monthly&timeframe=30&location=ME.   

6. Champlain Energy Systems: In reference to Clause 
3.1.3b, does this apply only when the Recipient is 
not also the property owner? 

Clause 3.1.3b states that a host site agreement must include 
“Acknowledgement by the property owner of Efficiency Maine’s 
security interest in the EV Charger equipment and a provision 
requiring the property owner to execute a Conditional 
Assignment of Lease that would allow Efficiency Maine to assume 
and succeed to the Recipient’s rights under the Host Site 
Agreement if Recipient were to default.” A Host Site Agreement is 
not required if the Recipient and the property owner are the 
exact same party. In addition, Efficiency Maine may waive the 
requirement to execute Rider E (Conditional Assignment) if the 
Recipient and the property owner are the exact same party. Both 
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Rider D (Security Agreement) and Rider F (Option Agreement) are 
required, regardless of whether the Recipient and the property 
owner are the same party. 

7. Champlain Energy Systems: Can a party submit a bid 
without a signed Host Site Agreement or a letter of 
commitment from a site owner, and then be 
granted 60 days from award announcement to 
locate and sign a Host Site Agreement? 

No. A bidder must submit either a signed Host Site Agreement or 
a letter from the property owner indicating permission or 
commitment to good faith negotiations. 

8. Champlain Energy Systems: Will adding an EVSE to a 
property increase a site owner's property taxes? 

Bidders should consult with a tax professional and/or local 
property assessor to determine whether installing EV chargers at 
their site could affect property taxes. 

9. Champlain Energy Systems: Is Efficiency Maine open 
to adding additional milestones in order to spread 
out the reimbursement payments? As it stands, the 
Recipient has to carry the burden of at least 80% of 
capital cost until the end of the project. 

Yes, Efficiency Maine is open to adding at least one additional 
milestone to the payment schedule. This option will be discussed 
with winning bidders in the contracting phase.  

 
10. Luke Dyer: …Is the 'demand charge', as requested in 

the RFP, an ESTIMATE of what the total USAGE costs 
would be (which is obviously dependent on how 
much charging the sites would provide over a 5 year 
period period)?  Or is the demand charge something 
other utilities use that does not apply to us?   The 
manager of our own utility, Van Buren Light & 
Power, is unsure what other utilities do but states 
that we will not have a specific designated DEMAND 
CHARGE like Versant & CMP are charging. 

… 

Not all utilities assess “demand charges.”  Only aspects of a utility 
bill that are labeled as “demand charges” are eligible for the 
demand charge incentive. All other aspects of a utility bill are not 
eligible for the demand charge incentive. Components of a utility 
bill that are not eligible for incentives through this RFP include 
but are not limited to: energy (kWh) charges and monthly meter 
fees. 

11. Chargepoint: Will EMT provide flexibility to increase 
the rate/fee initially proposed if there are price 
impacts justifiably beyond consideration of the 
consumer price index (e.g. utility demand charge 
and energy rate)? 

The contract will allow adjustment of the fees on customers 
consistent with the provisions of Section 3.1.1., Subsection 
3(d)(4) of the RFP. 

12. Chargepoint: Can you please confirm that EMT is 
intending to score projects higher that propose 
more ports? And would this scoring only account for 
Tier 1 locations / requirements? 

Projects with more than the required minimum number of ports 
will score higher on the “Quality of the Proposed Site, Equipment, 
and Operations” criteria. This applies to all tiers and locations. 

13. Chargepoint: Will applications score less if the 
intended timeline for completion is beyond 12 
months although there is justifiable delay? In our 
experience with current utility lead times and supply 
chain constraints, a 12-month project term is 
challenging to meet and often out of the applicant’s 
control. 

Projects that propose to install and operate the stations sooner 
will score higher on “Qualifications, Capacity, and Readiness”. 
However, projects will also receive points under this category for 
having a proposed timeline that is “sensible, reasonable and likely 
to be met.” The review team will weigh these factors when 
determining the proposal’s score. Efficiency Maine is aware of 
extended lead times for utility equipment and will consult with 
electrical utilities to determine reasonable timeframes for these 
projects. Efficiency Maine will not unreasonably withhold 
extensions to the deadline for project completion due to 
demonstrated supply chain constraints or utility interconnections 
that are out of the applicant’s control.  

14. Please clarify whether the “97% annual Uptime” 
requirement in RFP Section 3.1.2(6)(C) is for each 
charger unit or the entire charging site. 

The 97% annual uptime requirement applies to each individual 
DC fast charger. 

15. Are car dealerships eligible sites for this RFP? If so, 
are there any restrictions on what equipment can be 
funded at a car dealership? 

 Efficiency Maine will not fund any equipment that is required by 
an auto manufacturer in order for a dealership to sell EVs. 
However, equipment that is incremental to the minimum 
requirements of the manufacturer(s) of the automobiles to be 
sold at the dealership will be eligible to participate in this RFP 
provided that it meets all of the requirements of the RFP.  



16. Sierra Club: What incentives are in place for 
businesses that might win? 

Please see Section 2.6 of the RFP, “Incentives and Costs.” 

17. Sierra Club: What are the benefits? DC fast chargers can attract visitors to businesses and other 
public locations. A 2022 survey of Maine EV drivers by the Natural 
Resources Council of Maine found that 73% of EV drivers are 
more likely to choose a destination if charging is available. Data 
from existing DC fast chargers suggests that drivers typically 
spend around 30 minutes at a DC fast charger, potentially leading 
to higher dwell times at retail businesses and other public sites. 
 
Atlas Public Policy has published a report that outlines several 
business models for EV charging site hosts: 
https://atlaspolicy.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/04/Public-EV-
Charging-Business-Models-for-Retail-Site-Hosts.pdf. 
 
On a larger scale, DC fast charging can open a region to EV travel. 
A key goal of this RFP is to ensure that rural and remote areas are 
not left out as an increasing number of vehicles transition to 
electric. 

18. Sierra Club: How can I expect my electricity bill to be 
impacted by the EV charger? 

For customers whose utility applies a demand charge, the use of 
DC fast chargers will impact the demand charges. The impact will 
differ by utility territory; each utility has its own rates, which are 
posted on the website of the Maine Public Utilities Commission. 
To help defray the demand charges, Efficiency Maine is offering 
an incentive described at Section 2.6 of the RFP. . 

19. Sierra Club: It would be helpful for Efficiency Maine 
to further define what the eligibility criteria are for 
bidders. Recognizing the document includes EVSE 
vendors, third-party operators, host site property 
owners, and tenants, it could be good to have a 
clearer understanding of where business owners 
land within this list. 

Project eligibility is described in Section 2.6.4 of the RFP and 
minimum project requirements are described in Section 3.1. 
There are no eligibility restrictions as to the identity or type of 
bidder other than that they may not be debarred by the federal 
government. See also the proposal evaluation criteria 
enumerated in Section 5.1 of the RFP. 

20. Sierra Club: Do businesses have to match covering 
the cost? If yes, what percentage? If yes, what do 
payment plans look like? 

See Section 2.6 and Rider B of Attachment B (Standard 
Agreement).  
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